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Independent auditer's report

To the Participant and management of Zhaikmunai LLP
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Zhaikmuanai LLP (the Company), which comprise the staiement of
financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes

in equity and statement of cash flows for the year tren ended, and notes 1o the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting poficies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statemants present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Company as at 31 December 2016 and its financial performance and its cash flows jor the vear
then ended in accordance with International Financial Regorting Standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (15As). Cur responsibiiities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibitities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Inlernational Ethics Standards
Board for Accountanis’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (JESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our ather
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current pericd. Thes2 matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereen, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audii addressed the matier is provided in
that coniext.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these maiters. Accordingly, our audil included the
perfermance of procedures cdesigned to respond {o our assessment of the risks of material misstatemenri of the
financial statements. The results of our sudit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the
matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying financial statements.

ER I el RIS RS SR W BEAIFEE R B I LR



» Estimation of oif and gas reserves and its impact on the impairment testing, depreciation, depletion and
amortisation (DD&A) and decommissioning provision

We considered this matter to be one of the most significant to cur audit due to the fact that reserves estimates
are subjective in nature and have a pervasive impact on the financial statements through impairment testing,
DD&A calculations and decommissioning provision estimate.

The estimation of oil and gas reserves is a significant area of judgement due to the technical uncertainty in

assessing resarves quantities. Reserves and resources are also a fundamental inGicator of the future potential of
the Company’s performance.

Managemeni engaged an external speciatist to assist in the estimation of reserves volumes. We performed
evaluation of management’s assumptions including commercial assumptions, in parkicutar we:

s obtainad understanding of the Company's internal process and key controls associated with the oil and gas
reserves estimation process.

° held discussions with external specialists, engaged by the Company, during the planning and execution of
the audit and assessed their competence and objectivity by inguiring of their gualifications, practical
experience and independence. We have also assessed the competence of internat management's
specialists. We checked the accuracy of the data transfer to the external speciatist.

o analysed management’s commercial assumptions oy comparing them to the publicly availabla benchmarks
* aswell as actual and prior year data. We compared management's internal assumptions {o the latest plens
and budgets; we have also assessed management's capabilities to meet such plans by comparing prior
periods’ planned and actual resuits.

e validated that the updated raserves estimates were included appropriately in the Company's calculations
in respect of impairment, DD&A and decommissioning provision.

MNote 4 and Noie 6 to the financial statements describe the details of reserves estimates used io determine DD&A
and decommissioning provision.
= Impairment of exploration licenses, oif & gas develfopment and production fixed assets

This matter was one of the most significance to our audit due to the significance of the carrying value of the
assets being assessed, the current economic environment and the judgement involved in the assessment of the
recoverable amount of the Company’s Cash Generating Unit ('CGUY), in particular, in respect of future prices of
cil, natural gas and related products, both in the short and long-term, the discount rate applied to future cash
Hlow forecasts and the assumptiors relevant to praduction valumes.

For exploration ficenses we have evaluated management’s assessment of each impairment trigger. We have:

® eveluated the Company’s rights to explore under the relevant exploration area by abtaining and analyzing
supporting documentation such as license agreements and signed supplemental agreements and
communication with relevant government agencies.

s inquired management about the intention to carry out exploration and evaluatior activity in the relevani
exploration area and corroborated these responses by comparing them with the assumptions used in
management’s cash-flow forecast models.

& assessed the Company's ability to finance any planned future exploration and evaluation activity.
o assessed the competency of managemeant's experis.

o compared the commercial viability of the exploration fields to the cash-flow forecast models.



ror 04 & gas development and production fixed assets we involved our valuation specialists and analysed
management's impairment assessment by evaluating the key assumplions. We have:

o obtained understanding of the controls designed by the Company relating to the assessment of the
carrying vatue of oil & gas davelopment and production fixed assets.

o tested the integrity of models with the assistance of our own specialists.

e tested price and discount rate assumptions ay comparing forecast oil price assumptions tao the latest

market evidence available, including forward curves, braker's estimates and othe- long-term price
forecasts; and benchmarking the discount rate to the risks faced by the Company.

o tested forecast cash flows by comparing the assumptions used within the impairment models to the
approved budgets, business plans and other evidence of future intentions. We assessad the historical
accuracy of management's budgets and forecasts by comparing them to actual performance.

o compared the inflation and exchange rate assumptions to external market data.

evaluated sensitivity analysis of oil & gas development and production fixed assets impairment testing in
order Yo assess the potential impact of a range of reasonably possible outcomes.

e evaluated the financial statement disclosures against the requirements of IFRSs.

Mote 4 to the financial statements describes the sigaificant accounting policies and Notes 5 and 5 describe the
delails of oil & gas development and production fixed assets.

Other information included in the Company's 2016 Annual report

Other Infermation consists of the information inciuded in the Company’s 2016 Annual Report other than the
financial staterents and our auditor's report thereon. Management is responsible for the other infermation. The
Company’s 2016 Annual Report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion or the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form o’
assurance conclusion thereon,

i connection with our audit of the financial statements, cur responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, cansider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears fo ke
materially misstated.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Managemeni is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with IFRSs, and for such internal control a5 management determines is necessary io enable the preparation of
tinancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing ihe Comgany's ability to continue
s a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless management either intends tg liquidate the Company or to cease operations. or has no
regiistic alternative but to do so.



Auditor’s responsibifities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from materiat misstatement. whether due to fraud or 2rror, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or arror and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the econormic decisiors of users taker on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with iSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit, We alsa:

> ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sutficient and appropriate to pravide a basis tor our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resuliing from error, as fraud may invalve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are apprepriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an cpinion on the
ettectiveness of the Company's injernal control.

> Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclesures macde by management.

> Conclude on Lhe appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists refated to svents or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. I we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to
the related disciosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
apinton. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence chiained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company o cease to continue as a going concern.

> Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of ¢he financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner {hat achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internai controi that we
identify curing our audit.

We afso provide those charged wit™ governance w'th a statement that we have ¢complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and ciher matiers that
may reasonably be thought te bea- on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Fram the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matiers that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are sherefore the Key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes oublic disciosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumsiances, we delermine that a matter should not be

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would raasonably be expected to
oulweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The partner in charge of the audit resulting in this independent auditor's repo’t is Paul Cohn.

Samat &M JLP

Paul Cohn
Audit Partner

</ o

Gulmira Turmag il
General Director

Agerim Nurkeras &
Auditor

Ernst & Young LLP ) j/f
Auditor Qualification Certificate State Audit License for athigh iti ?Q}
Ng. 0000115 dated 21 September 2012 the territory of the Repubtic '

saeries MOK-2 Mo. 0000003 issue
the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of
Kazakhstan on 15 July 2005

Address: Kazakhstan 050060, Almaty
Al-Farabi Ave., T7/7

27 March 2017
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Zhaikmunai LLP Financial statements

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2016

31 December 31 December
in thousands of US Dollars Motes 2016 2015
Assets
Non-current assets
Exploration and evaluation assels 5 44,271 36,917
Property, ptant and equipment, net 5] 1,800,431 1,608,821
Restricted cash 11 5,980 5,375
Advances for non-gurrent assels 7 28,676 130,660
Derivative financlal Instruments 25 - 43,005
1,888,358 1,821,778
Current assels
Inventories 8 28,326 28,953
Trade receivablas 10 29,052 31,337
Prepayments and other current assels 9 19,668 25,519
Derivative financial Instruments 25 6,658 54,095
Income tax prepayment 1,082 26,926
Cash and cash equivalents 11 85,488 134,828
170,264 301,758
Total assets 2,058,622 2,123,536
Equity and llabiiitles
Partnership capital and reserves
Partnership capital 12 4,112 4,112
Other reserves 32,586 32,440
Retained earnings 556,126 622,763
592,824 659,315
Non-current kiabilities
Long-term borrowings 13 1,003,893 936,666
Abandonment and site resteration provision 14 19,635 15,028
Due to Government of Kazakhstan 15 5511 5,777
Deferred tax llabitity 24 344,684 347,767
1,373,843 1,366,138
Gurrent liabilitles
Current partion of long-term borrowings 13 15,518 15,361
Trade payables 16 43,517 40,578
Advances recelved 1,810 245
Current porlion of dua to Govemment of Kazakhstan 15 1,289 1,031
Other current fabililies 17 29,821 40,768
81,955 08,083
Total equity and liabilitles 2,058,622 2,123,536

“\f::g\mlﬁffyq{

Generl Director of Zhaikmunai LLP

Zhomdrr Darkeev

s

Olga Shoshinova

Chief Accountant of Zhaikmunai LLP

s
ot

The acconnting policies and explanatory notes on pages 5 through 33 are an integral part of these fiuancial statemenis.



Zhaikmunai LLP Financial statements

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended 31 December 2016

In thousands of US Dollars Notes 2018 2015
Ravenue
Revenue from export sales 244,586 426,764
Revaenue from domestic sales 103,397 22137
18 347,983 448,801
Cost of sales 19 {201,785) {187,816)
Gross profit 148,198 261,085
General and administrative expenses 20 {18,008) (27.982)
Selling and transportation expenses 21 {75,683) 92,970)
Finance cosls 22 {49,127} (51,740}
Fareign exchangs gainf{loss), nat 214 {20,023}
{Loss)/gain on derivative financlal instrument 25 (63,244) 37,055
interest income 423 341
Other income 9,718 11,409
Other expenses 23 {1,545) {30,495)
{Loss)profit befora Income tax (51,054) 86,680
Current income {ax {expense) {1B,667) {21,633}
Deferred income tax benefit{expense) 3,084 {142,469)
Incore tax expense 24 {15,583} (164,102}
Loss for the year (66,637) (77.422)

Qther comprehensive income for the year - -
Total comptehensive lass for the year {66,637) {77,422}

X

General Director of Zhaikmunai LLP

% Zhomart Darkaev
Chief Accountant of Zhaikmunai LLP . E'n""“‘ﬁ"“"?%q\ %_ﬂ_ﬂ_}
i Olga Shoshinova

The accounting policies and explanatory notes on pages 5 ihrough 33 are an integral part of these financial statements.



Zhaikmunai LLP Financial statements

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the year ended 31 December 2016

In thousands of US Dollars Notes 2016 2015
Cash flow from operating activitles:

{Loss)fprofit before income tax {51,054} 86,680
Adjustments for:

Depreclation, deplelion and amortisation 19,20 131,960 105,120
Financo cosls 22 49,127 51,740
fnterest incomea {423) {341)
Forelgn exchange gain on investing and financing activities (1,493) (3.,023)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 95 39
Proceeds from derivative financial instruments 25 27,193 92,256
Purchase of derivativa financlal Instruments 25 - (92,000)
Loss/{gain) on derivative finanglal Instruments 25 63,244 {37,055)
QOperating profit before working capital changes 218,654 207,416
Changes in working capitaf

Change In inventories 710 {3,510)
Change in trade recelvables 2,285 {1.227)
Change in prepayments and other current assets 21,419 13,051
Changa in trade payables 1,546 7.537
Change in advances received 1,565 (2,425)
Change in due to Gavernment of Kazakhstan {773} {1,031)
Change in other current lisbilllies {11,630} {3,562}
Cash generated from operations 233,776 216,240
Incomae tax paid {7,087) {37,148)
Net cash flows from operating activities 226,689 178,103
Cash flow from Investing activities

Interest received 423 34
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (197,171) (255,707}
Sale of property, plant and equipment - 543
Exploration and evaluation warks {7,475} (12,943)
Redemption of bank deposits - 25,000
Net cash used In invasting activities {204,223} {242 766)
Cash flow from financing activities

Finance costs paid {71,077) (70,768}
Payment of finance lease llabilities {669) -
Repayment of borrowings 13 - (45,000)
Transfer to restricled cash (605) (352}
Profit distributions pald 12 - {45,000)
Consideration paid for repurchased interests 12 (494} -
Consideration received for scld interests 12 840 -
Net cash used in financing activities {72,205) {161,120}
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalenis 309 {1.639)
Nat decrease In cash and cash equivalents (49,43%) (226,422}
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 11 134,928 361,350
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 11 " 85,498 134,928

Genera!l Director of Zhaikmunai LLP N

*

3 ngwmmf Darkeev

: »
e A REMYHEE 15

4.
E :? // s
Jead -

odon i Olga Shoshinova
el

Fue Jun_
gt

3%

Chief Accountant of Zhailmunai LLP

The accounting policies and explanarory notes on pages 3 through 33 are an integral part of these financial statements.



Zhaikmunsi LLP Financial statements
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Faor the year ended 31 December 2016
Partnership Other Retained

in thousends of US Dollars Nates capital reserves earnings Total
As at 31 Decembar 2014 4112 32440 745,185 781,737
Loss for the year - -~ {77.422) (77.422)
Total comprehensive loss

for the year - - {(77.422) {77.422)
Profit distribution 12 - - {45,000} {45,000}
As at 31 December 2015 4,112 32,440 622,763 650,315
Loss for the year - - {66,637} (66,637)
Total comprehenslve loss

for the year _ - - {66,637) (66,637}
Surplus on the repurchased and

reissued interests 12 - 146 - 146
As at 31 December 2018 4,112 32,586 556,126 592,824
General Director of Zhaikmunai LLP l & ;

Zhomart Dbirkeev
:..':’F:fi I3 '_gg:;,t!!{?ff:@ 3 %f—“‘"
Chief Accountant of Zhaikmunai LLP
Olga Shoshinova

The accounting policies and explanatory notes on pages 5 through 33 are an integral part of these financial statements.



Zhaikmunai LLP Financial slatements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Far the year ended 31 December 2016

1. GENERAL

QOverview

Zhaikmunai, & Limited Lisbility Partnership (ihe “Partnership” or “Zhaikmunai LLP™) was established under the laws
of the Republic of Kazakhstan in 1997,

On 28 February 2014 the Partnership acquired in a transaction under commeon control 1,000 ordinary shares of Nostrum
Oil & Gas Finance B.V., representing 100% of its charter capital, fom Nostrum Oil & Gas B.V. (formerly known as
Zhaikmunai Netherlands B.V.), an entity under control of &8 common parent. In 2014 the Partnership sold 100% interest in

its dormant subsidiaries Zhailanunai Finance B.V., Zhaikimunai International B.V, and Nostrum Qit & Gas Finance B.V.
to Nostrum Oil & Gas B.V.

‘The Partnership’s operatiens comprise of a single operating segment and 3 (three) additional exploraticn concessions
located in Kazakhstan,

The participants of the Partnership, their shares and changes in the participants’ structure are disclosed in Nofe /2.
The Partnership does not have an ultimate controlling party.

The registered legal address of the Partnership is: 43/1, Aleksondr Karev street, Uralsk, the Republic of Kazakhstan,

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Partnership’s General Director, Chief Financial Officer and
Chief Accountant on 27 March 2017.

Subsoil use rights terms

The Partnership carries out its activities in accordance with the Contract for Additional Exploration, Production and
Production-Sharing of Crude Hydrocarboens in the Chinarevskoye oil and gas condensate field (the “Contract™) dated
31 October 1997 between the State Commitiee of Investments of the Republic of Kazakhstan and the Partnership in

accordance with the license MG No. 253D for the exploration and production of hydrecarbons in Chinarevskoye oil and
gas condensate field.

On 17 August 2012 the Partnership signed Asset Purchase Agreements to acquire 100% of the subsoil use rights related
to three oif and gas fields ~ Rostoshinskoye, Darjinskoye and Yuzhino-Gremyachinskoye — gll located in the Western
Kazakhstan region. On | March 2013 the Partnership acquired the subsoil use rights related to these three oil and gas
fields in Kazakhstan following the signing of the respective supplementary agreements relnted thereto by the authority
now known as the Ministry of Energy (the “MOE") of the Republic of Kazakhstan,

The temm of the Chinarevskoye subsoil use rights originally included a 5-year exploration period and
a 25-year production period. Subsequemtly on 28 December 2016 the thirteenth supplementary agreement to
the Contract was signed extending the exploration period for the Bobrishovskiy reservoir to 26 May 2018,

The contract for exploration and production of hydrocarbons from Rostoshinskoye feld dated 8 February 2008
originally included a 3-year exploration period and a 12-year production period. Subsequently, the exploration period

was exlended until 8 February 2017. The Partnership’s application for firther extension of the exploration period is
under appraval by the MOE.

The contract for exploration and production of hydrocarbons from Darjinskoye field dated 28 July 2006 originally

included a 6-year exploration period and a 19-year production period. Subsequently, the exploration period was
extended until 31 December 2017,

The contract for exploration and production of hydrocarbons from Yuzhno-Gremyachinskoye field dated 28 July 2006

originally included a 5-year exploration period and & 20-year production period. Subseguently, the exploration period
was extended until 31 December 2017,



Zhaikmunai LLP Financial statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Royalty payments

The Parmership is required to make monthly royalty payments throughout the entire production period, at the rates
specified in the Contract,

Royalty rates depend on hydrocarbons recovery levels and the phase of production and can vary from 3% to 7% of
produced crude oil and from 4%% to 9% of produced natural gas. Royalty is accounted on a gross basis,

Government “profit share™

The Partnership makes payments to the Government of its “profit share™ as determined in the Contract. The “profit
share” depends on hydrocarbon production levels and varies from 10% to 40% of production afier deducting royalties
and reimbursable expenditures. Reimbursable expenditures include operating expenses, costs of additional exploration

and development costs. Government “profit share” is expensed as incurred and paid in cash. Government profit share is
accounted on a gross basis.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

Basis of preparation

These financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016 have been prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (*IFRS”) issued by International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB™), The financial
statements have been prepared based on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which are carried

at fair value as stated in the accounting policies (Wovte 4). The financial statements are presented in US Dollars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand, except when otherwise indicated.

‘The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Parinership’s accounting

policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

New standards, interpretations and amendments thereof, adopted by the Partuership

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the below
amendments to IFRS effective as at 1 January 2016. The Parinership has not adopted any other standard, interpretation
or amendment that has been issued but is not yet effective. The nature and the impact of each new standard or
amendment which is applicable 10 the Partnership’s financials statements is described below:

Amendments to IS 16 and I48 38 Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation

The amendments clarify the principle in IAS 16 and IAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattemn of economic benefits that are
generated from operating a business (of which the asset is part) rather than the cconomic benefits that are consumed
through use of the asset. As a result, a revenue-based method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and
equipiment and may only be used in very limited circumstances to amortise intanpible assets.

The amendments are applied prospectively and do not have eny impact on the Parinership given that the Partnecship
does not use a revenue-based method to depreciate its non-current assets,

Applicability of the amendments 10 IFRS 7 fo condensed interim financial statements

The amendment clarifies thot the offsetting disclosure requirements do not apply (o condensed interim financial

statements, unless such disclosures provide a sipnificant update to the information reported in the most recent annual
report. This amendment is appHed retrospectively.



Zhaikmunai LLP Financial statements

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

148 34 Interim Financial Reporting

The amendment clarifies that the required interim disclosures must cither be in the interim financial siatements or
incorporated by cross-reference between the interim financial statements and wherever they are included within the
interim financial report {e.g., in the management commentary or risk report). The other information within the interim
financial report must be available to users on the same terms as the interim financial statements and at the same time.
This amendment is applied retrospectively. These amendments do not have any impact on the Partmership.

Amendmenis to IAS I Disclosure Initiative

The amendments to IAS 1 Preseniation of Financial Statements clarify, rather than significantly change, existing IAS |
requirements, The amendments clarify:

. The materality requirements in [AS 1.

o That specific line items in the statement(s) of profit or loss and OCI and the statement of financial position may
be disagpregated.

. That entities have flexibility as to the order in which they present the notes to financial statements,

® That the share of OCI of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity method must be presented

in aggregate as a single ling item, and classified between those items that will or will not be subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss,

Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements that apply when additional subtotals are presented in the

staternent of financial position and the statement(s) of profit or loss and OCI, These amendments do not have any
impact on the Partnership.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The standards and interpretations applicable to the Partnership’s financial statements that are issued, bul not yet

effective, up to the date of issuance of the Partnership’s financial statements are disclosed below. The Partnership
intends to adopt these standards, when they become effective.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS S Financial Instiuments that replaces 1AS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and all previous versions of IFRS 9. IFRS  brings together all three aspects
of the accounting for the financial instruments project: classification and measurement; impairment; and hedge
accounting. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early application permitted.
Except for hedge accounting, retrospective application is required, but providing comparative information is not
compulsory. Fer hedge accounting, the requirements are generally applied prospectively, with some limited exceptions.

The Partnership plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective date, During 2016, the Partnership performed
a high-level impact assessment of all three aspects of [FRS 9. This preliminary assessment is based on currently
available information and may be subject to changes arising from further detailed analyses or additional reasonable and

supportable information being made available to the Partnership in the future. Overall, the Partnership expects no
significant impact of IFRS 9 on its balance sheet,

(a)  Classification and measurement

The Partnership does not expect a significant impact on its balance sheet or cquity on applying the classification and
measurement requirements of IFRS 9. It will continue measuring at fair value derivative financial instruments.

Trade receivables are held to collect contractual cash flows and are expected to give rise to cash flows representing

solely payments of principal and interest. Thus, the Partnership expects that these will continue to be measured at
amortised cost under IFRS 9,

(6} fmipairment

TFRS 9 requires the Partmership to record expected credit losses on all of its debt securities, loans and trade receivables,
either on a [2-month or lifetime basis. The Partnership expects to apply the simplified approach and record lifetime
expected losses on all trade receivables. The Partnership does not expect a significant impact on its equity due to the
average short collection period of trade receivables as well as anticipation of low trade impairment losses on trade
receivables based on the historical data, but it will need to perform a more detailed analysis which considers all
reasonable and supportable information, including forward-looking elements o determine the extent of the impact.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under [FRS 15 revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for transfermring poods or services 1o a customer,

The principles in [FRS 15 provide & more structured approach to measuring and recognising revenue. The new revenue
standard is applicable to all entities and will superseds ali current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS, Either
a full or modified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or afier | January 2018. Early
adoption is permitted. The Partnership plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective date using the full
retrospective methad. During 2016, the Parinership performed a preliminary assessment of IFRS 15, which is subject to
changes arising from a more detailed ongoing analysis, Furthermore, the Parmership is considering the clarification
issued by the IASB in April 2016 and will monitor any further developments,

(a) Sale of goods

The Parnership’s revenue is driven by sale of crude oil, gas condensate and LPG. The goods are sold on their own in
separate identified contracts with customers, Therefore, contracts with customers of the sale of goods is generally
expected to be the only performance obligation are not expected to have any impact on the Partnerships profit or loss.

The Partnership expects the revenue recognition to occur at a point in time when control of the asset is ransferred to the
customer, generally on the delivery of the goods.

(b}  Presentation and disclosure requirements

IFRS 15 provides presentation and disclosure requirements, which are more detailed than under current IFRS, Many of
the disclosure requirements in IFRS 15 are completely new. In 2016 the Partmership started o develop appropriate
systems, internal controls, policies and procedures necessary to collect and disclose the required information,

IERS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties
to a contract, i.e, the customer (‘lessee’) and the supplier (*lessor’).

All [eases result in a company (the lessee) obtaining the right to use an asset at the start of the lease and, if lease
payments are made over time, also obtaining financing.

Accordingly, IFRS 16 eliminates the classification of leascs as either aperating leases or finance leases as is required by
1AS 17 and, instead, introduces a single lessee accounting model. Applying that model, a lessee is required to recognise:

a) Assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low
value; and

b) Depreciation of lease assets separately from interest on lease liabilities in the income statement,

IERS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in IAS 17, Accordingly, a lessor continues to
classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases differently.

IFRS 16 is cffective from } January 2019, A company can choose to apply IFRS 16 before that date but only if it also
applics [FRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers. A lessee can chose to apply the standard using either a full
retrospective or a modified refrospective approach. The standard’s transition provisions permit certain reliefs,

IFRS 16 replaces the previous leases Standard, IAS 17 Leases, and related Interpretations,

In 2017, the Parinership plans to assess the potential effect of IFRS 16 on its financial statements, but in broad terms,

the impact will be to recopnise a lease liability and a corresponding asset for most of the operating lease commitments
disclosed in Note 27,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Exploration expenditure

Costs directly associnted with exploration wells are capitalised within exploration and evaluation assets until the drilling
of the well is complete and the results have been evaluated. These costs include employee remuneration and materials
and fuel used, rig costs and payments made to contractors and asset retirement obligation fees. If hydrocarbons are
found and, subject to further appraisal activity (e.g., the drilling of additional wells), it is probable that they can be

commercially developed, the costs continue to be carried as an asset while sufficient/continued progress is made in
assessing the commerciality of the hydrocarbons,

All such carried costs are subject to technical, commercial and management review at least once a year to confirm

the continued intent to develop or otherwise extract value from the discovery, When this is no longer the case, the costs
are written off.

Subsoil use rights acquisition costs are initially capitalised in exploration and evaluation assets. Subsoil use rights
acquisition costs are reviewed at each reporting date to confirm that there is no indication that the camrying amount
exceeds the recoverable amount. This review includes confirming that exploration drilling is still under way or firmly
planned, or that it has been determined, or work is under way to determine that the discovery is economically viable
based on a range of technical and commercial considerations and sufficient progress is being made on establishing
development plans and timing. If no fiture activity is planned or the subsoil vse rights have been relinquished or has
expired, the carrying value of the subsoil use rights acquisition costs is written off (hrough profit or loss. Upon

recognition of proved reserves and internal approval for development, the relevant expenditure is transferred to oil and
gas properties,

For more detailed information in relation to exploration and evaluation assets, please see Note 5.
Property, plant and equipment
Oil and gas properties

Expenditure on the construction, installation or completion of infrastructure facilities such as treatment facilities,
pipelines and the drilling of development wells, is capitalised within property, plant and equipment as oil and gas
properties. The initial cost of an asset comprises its purchase price or construction cost, any costs directly attributable 1o
bringing the asset into operation and the initial estimate of decommissioning obligation, if any. The purchase price or
construction cost is the aggregate amount paid and the fair value of any other consideration given to acquire the asset.
When a development project noves into the production stage, the capitalisation of certain construction/development
costs ceases and casts are either regarded as part of the cost of inventary or expensed, except for costs which qualify for
capitalisation relating to oil and gas property asset additions, improvements or new developments,

All capilalised costs of oil and gas properties ave depleted using the unit-of-production method based on estimated
proved develcped reserves of the field, except the Partership depreciates its oil pipeline and oil loading terminal on

a straight line basis over the life of the relevant subsoil use rights. In the case of assets that have a useful life shorter
than the lifetime of the feld the straight line method is applied.

Other properties

All other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment.
Historical cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are
included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a scparate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that
fulure economic benefits associated with the item will llow to the Parinership and the cost of the jtem can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or loss during the year in which they are incurred.

Pepreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Years
Buildings and constructions 7-15
Vehicles 8
Machinery and equipment 3413
Other 3-10

For more detailed information in relation to property plant and equipment, please refer to Note 6.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

Significant accounting judgments, estimaies and assumptions: oil and gas reserves

Oil and gas reserves arc a material factor in the Partmership’s computation of depreciation, depletion and amortisation
(the “DD&A™}, These reserve quantities are used for calculating the unit of production depletion rate as it reflects the
expected pattemn of consumption of future economic benefits by the Partnership.

The Partnership uses the internal estimates confirmed by independent reserve engineers on an annual basis to assess
the oil and gas reserves of'its cil and gas fields. The reserves estimates are made in accordance with the methodology of
the Society of Petroleum Engineers (the “SPE"), In estimating its reserves under the SPE methodology, the Parinership
uses long-term planning prices which are also used by management to make investment decisions about development of
a field. Using planning prices for estimating proved reserves removes the impact of the volatility inherent in using
year-end spot prices. Management believes that long-lerm planning price assumptions are more consistent with the
long-term nature of the upstream business and provide the most appropriate basis for estimating oil and gas reserves,
All reserve estimates involve some degree of uncertainty. The uncertainty depends mainly on the amount of reliable
geological and engineering data available at the time of the estimate and the interpretation of this data,

The relative degree of uncertainty can be conveyed by placing reserves into one of two principal classifications, either
proved or unproved, Proved reserves are more certain to be recovered than unproved reserves and may be further

sub-classified as developed and undeveloped to denote progressively increasing uncertpinty in their recoverability.
Estimates are reviewed and revised annually.

Revisions oceur due to the evaluation or re-evaluation of already available geological, reservoir or production data;
availability of new data; or changes to underlying price assumptions, Reserve estimales may also be revised due to
improved recovery projects, changes in production capacity or changes in development strategy. Proved developed
reserves are used to calculate the unit of production rates for DD&A, whereby changes in proved reserves is dealt with
prospectively by amortizing the remaining carrying value of the asset over the expected future production. Downward
revision of the proved reserves estimates in the future could lead to relative increase in depreciation expense. Estimates
of economically recoverable oil and gas reserves and related future net cash flows also impact the impairment

assessment of the Partnership. Details on carrying values of oil and gas properties and related depreciation, depletion
and amortization are shown in Nofe 4.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, exploration and evaluation assets

The Partmership assesses assets or groups of assets, called cash-generating units (CGUS), for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or CGU may not be recovernble; for
example, changes in the Parinership’s business plans, significant decreases in the market commodity prices, low plant
utilisation, evidence of physical damage or, for oil and gas assets, significent downward revisions of estimated reserves
or increases in estimated future development expenditure or decommissioning costs. If any such indication of
impairment exists, the Partnership makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount, Individual assets are grouped
into CGU for impaimment assessment purposes at the lowest level at which there are identifiable cash flows that are
largely independent of the cash flows of othier groups of assets. A CGUs recoverable amount is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Where the carrying amount of a CGU exceeds its recoverable amount,
the CGU is considered impaired and is written down to ils recoverable amount. The business cash flow intemal model,
which is approved on an annual basis by senior management, is the primary source of information for the determination
of value in use. It contains forecasts for oil and gas production, sales volumes for various types of products, revenues,
costs and capital expenditure, As an initial step in the preparation of this model, various assumptions are set by senior
management. These assumptions take account of cammodity prices, global supply-demand equilibrium for oif and
natural gas, other macroeconomic factors and historical trends and variability. In assessing value in use, the estimated

future cash flows are adjusted for the risks specific to the asset group and are discounted to their present value using
o pre-{ax rate,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Significattt accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions: impairment of property, plant and equipmeni,
explovation and evaluation assets

Management has determined a single cash-generating unit within the Partnership’s non-current assets consisting of all
Partnership's assets related to its Chinarevskoye and exploration ficlds and gas treatment facility.

Determination as to whether, and by how much, the CGU is impaired involves management’s best estimates on highly

uncertain matters such as future commedity prices, operating expenses and capital expenditures estimates, discount rate,
future production volumes and fiscal regimes.

The recoverable amount is determined by calculation of the value-in-use based on the discounted cash flow model as na
recent third party transactions exist on which a reliable market-based fair value can be established. The value-in-use
calculation model takes into consideration cashBows, which are expected to arise until 2032, i.e. during the license term
of the Chinarevskoye ficld. The peried exceeding five years is believed to be appropriate based on the proved and

probable reserves audited by independent engineers and respective past history of the Partnership’s ability to transfer
probable reserves inta proved.

The key assumptions used in the Group’s discounted cash flow model reflecting past experience and taking in account
of external factors are subject to periodic review, These assumptions are:

. 0il prices (in real terms): US$ 55/bbl for 2016-2017 and US$ 60/bbi for 2018-2032;

° Proved and probable hydrocarbon reserves confirned by independent reserve engineers;
. Production profiles based on Group's internal estimates confirmed by independent reserve engineers;
° All cash flows are projected on the basis of stable prices, i.e. inflation/growth rates are ignored;

Cost profiles for the development of the fields and subsequent operating costs consistent with reserves estimates
and production profiles; and

o Pre-tex discount rate of 14.1%4 (2015: 14.0%);

. Completion of the 1third unit for the gas treatment facility in 2017 resulting in gradual increase in the annual
production volumes from 40,351 boepd in 2016 to approximately 100,000 boepd by the end of 2019.

These estimates may have a material impact on the value in use and, respective impairment, e.g. low oil prices for an
extended period might lead to impairment charges. A 100 basis points increase in the pre-tax rate to 15% would result
in mo addilional impairment charges. None of the reasonably possible changes in other key asswmptions causes the cash
generating unit’s carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount. More detailed information related to carrying
values of oil and gas properties and related depreciation, depletion and ameortisation are shown in Note 6.

Taxation

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount
and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business relationships and the long-term
nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the
assumptions made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustmients to tax bases of income
and expense already recorded. The Partnership establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible
consequences of audits by the tax authority of the country in which it operates. The amount of such provisions is based
on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the
Partnership and the tax authority. Such differences in interpretation may arise for a wide variety of issues depending on
the conditions prevailing in the domicile of the Partmership.

Current incone tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the

taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that apply to the relevant taxable
income,

Current income 1ax relating to items recognised directly in equity and not in the statement of profit or loss, Management

periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Deferved income fax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated in respect of temporary differences using the lizbility method. Deferred
income taxes are provided for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying values for Gnancial reporting purposes, except where the deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

A deferred tax asset is recorded only to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at tax rates that are

expecled to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the linbility is settled, based on tax rates that have been
cnacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, cxcept

where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in (he foresecable future,

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if 3 legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current {ax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority,

For more detailed information in current and deferred income tax disclosure as at 31 December 2016 and 2015, please
see Nore 24,

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assunptions: taxation

Knzakhsians tax legislation and regulations are subject to ongoing changes and varying interpreiations, Instances of
inconsistent opinions between local, regional and national tax authorities are not unusnal. Because of the uncertainties
associated with Kazakhstan's tax system, the ultimate amount of taxes, penalties and interest, if any, may be in excess
of the amount expensed to date and accrued at 31 December 2016,

The Partnership is subject to routine tax aundits and also a process wherchy tax computations are discussed and agreed
with the tax authorities. Whilst the ultimate outcome of such tax audits and discussions cannot be determined with
certainty, management estimates the level of provisions required for taxes for which it is considered probable will be
payable, based on professional edvice and consideration of the nature of current discussions with the tax authority.

As at 31 December 2016 management believes that its interpretation of the relevant legislation is appropriate and that it
is probable that the Partnership’s tax position will be sustained. To the extent that actual outcomes differ from

management’s estimates, income tax charges or credits, and changes in curent and deferred tax assels or liabilities, may
arise in fisture periods. For more inforimation, see Note 24.

Foreign currency translation

The functional currency of the Partnership is the United States Dollar {the “US Dollar” or “USS"™).

Transactions and balances denominated in foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Partnership at their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and fiabilities denominated in (foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency spot rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. All differences are taken to the
profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using (he exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monelary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined.

Advances for non-current assets

Advances paid {or capilal investments/acquisition of non-current assets are qualified as advances for non-current assets
regardless of the period of supplies of relevant assets or the supply of work or services to close advances. Advances

paid for the purchase of non-current assets are recognised by the Parmership as non-current assets and are not
discounted,

For more detailed information in relation to advances for non-curvent assets, please refer to Note 7.
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Barrowing costs

The Partnecship capitalises borrowing costs on qualifying assels. Assets qualifying for borrowing costs capitalisation
include all assets under construction that are not being depreciated, depleted, or amortised, provided that work is In
progress at that time. Qualifying assets mostly include wells and other operations field infrastructure under construction.
Capitalised borrowing costs are calculated by applying the capitalisation rate to the expenditures on qualifying assets.
The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to the Partuership’s borrowings that are

outstanding during the period. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income in
the period in which they are incurred,

For more detailed information in relation to capitalisation of borrowing costs, please refer to Note /3.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value (“NRV™). Cost of oil, gas condensate and liquefied
petroleum pas (“LPG") is determined on the weighted-average method based on the production cost including the
relevant expenses on depreciation, depletion and impairment and overhead costs based on production volume,
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less selling expenses,

For more information in relation to the breakdown of inventories as at 31 December 2016 and 2015, please see Note 8,

Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised when the Partnership has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
evenl, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are reviewed by the Partnership at each
balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable that an cutfow of
resources embodying ecottomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

The Partnership classifies as contingent Habilities those possible obligations that arise from past events and whose
existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or mere uncertain fitture events not wholly
within the control of the enterprise and the present obligations that arise from past events but are not recognised because
it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to seitle the obligation or
the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

The Parinership does not recognise contingent liabilities but discloses contingent linbilities in Note 27, unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

Decommissioning

Provision for decommissioning is recognised in full, when the Partnership has an obligation to dismantle and remove a

facility or an item of plant and to restore the site on which it is located, and when a reasonable estimate of that provision
can be made.

The Parnership estimates future dismantlement and site restoration costs for oil and gas properties with reference to the
estimates provided from either internal or external engineers after taking into consideration the anticipated method of
dismantlement and the extent of site restoration required in accordance with current legislation and industry practice.
The amount of the provision is the present value of the estimated expenditures expected to be required o settle the
abligation at current year prices adjusted for expected long-term inflation rate and discounted at the applicable rate,

The unwinding of the discount related to the obligation is recorded in finance costs. A corresponding amount cquivalent
to the provision is also recognised as part of the cost of the related oil and gas properties. This asset is subsequently
depreciated as part of the capital costs of the oil and gas properties on a unit-of-production basis.

The Partnership reviews site restoration provisions at each financial reporting date and adjusts them to reflect current
best estimates in accordance with IFRIC 1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration and Similar Liabilities.
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Changes in the measurement of an existing decommissioning liability that result from changes in (he estimated timing

or amount of the outflow of resources embodying economic benefits required to settle the obligation, or changes to
the discount rate;

(a)  are added to, or deducted from, the cost of the related asset in the current period, If deducted from the cost of
the asset the amount deducted shall not exceed its carrying amount. If & decrease in the provision exceeds
the carrying amount of the asset, the excess is recognised imunediately in the profit or loss; and

(b}  if the adjustment results in an addition to the cost of an asset, (he Parmership considers whether this is
an indication that the new carrying amount of the asset may not be fully recoverable. 1f it is such an indication,

the Parmership tests the asset for impairment by estimating its recoverable amount, and accounts for any
impairment loss in accordance with [AS 36.

Movements in the abandonment and site restoration provision are disclosed in Nore 74.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and asswmptions: provisions and contingencies

Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the peried when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of
fiunds resulting from past operations or events and the amount of cash cutfow can be reliably estimated, The timing of
recognition and quantification of the liability require the application of judgment io existing facts and circumstances,

which can be subject to change. The carrying amounts of provisions and liabilitics are reviewed regularly and adjusted
to take account of changing facts and circumstances.

Significant management judgment is required to evaluate any claims and actions to determine whether a provision
relating to a specific litigation should be recognized or revised, or a contingent liability is required to be disclosed, since
the outcome of litigation s difficult to predict.

The Partmership holds provision for the fature decommissioning of oil and ges properties and site restoration.
The estimation of the future dismantlement and site restoration costs involves significant estimates and judgments by

management. Significant judgments in making such estimates include estimates of future cash outflows timing and
discount rate.

Management made its estimates based on the assumption that cash flow will take place at the expected end of
the subsoil use rights. Therefore, the most decommissioning events are many years in the future and the precise date of
wells pbandonment and site restoration may change with the relative impact on the cash outflows. Management of the
Parnership believes that the long-term interest rates on the Eurcbonds issued by the Ministry of Finance of
the Republic of Kazakhstan provides the best estimates of applicable risk uncorrected discount rate, Any changes in
the expected future costs are reflected in both the provision and the asset. Moreover, actual decommissioning costs can

differ from estimates because of constantly changing decommissioning technologies as well as changes in
environmental laws and regulations and public expectations.

The Partniership believes that the impact of any reasonably foreseeable change {o these provisions on the Parinership’s

resulls of aperations, financial position or liquidity will not be material. For more details on abandonment and site
restoration provision please refer to Note 4.

Oc¢her current linbilities

The Partnership makes accruals for liabilities related (o the underperformance and or adjustments of work programs
under subsoil use agreements (the “SUA™) on a regular basis, When evaluating the adequacy of an accrual, management
bases its estimates on the latest work program included in the SUA and relevant signed supplements and potential future
changes in payment terms (including the cwrency in which these liabilities are to be setiled). Future changes in
the work programs may require adjustments to the acerual recorded in the consolidated financial statements.

Financial assets

Initial recognition, neaswrement and derecognition

Financial assels within the scope of 1AS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, available-for-sale financial assets, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Partnership determines the classification of {ts financial
assets at initial recognition.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through profit
or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
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Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or

convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e, the date that the Partnership
commits to purchase or sell the assel.

The Parmership’s inancial assets include cash, long-term and short-term deposits, trade and other receivables.
Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method if the time value of money is
significant. Gains and losses are recognised in income when the loans and recejvables are derecognised or impaired, as
well as through the amortisation process. This category of Snancial assets includes trade and other reccivables.

Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value and have & maturity of threc months or less from the date of acquisition.

Impairment of financial assets

The Partnership assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets {s impaired, A financial asset or a group of Bnancial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if,
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or mere cvents that has occurred after the initial recognition
of the asset {an incurred *Joss event™) and that loss event has an impact on the estimated firture cash fows of the
financial asset or the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
banlauptcy or other financial reorganisation and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated futwre cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defauits,

For financial assets carried at amortised cost the Partnership assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists. [f there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrving amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows

(excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been incusred). The present value of the estimated fature cash
flows is discounted at the financial assets eriginal effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the profit or loss. Financial assets together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no
realistic prospect of future recovery. If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or
decreases because of an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment

loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account, 1f a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is
credited to finance costs in the profit or loss.

Finaneial liabilities

Initial recognition, measurement and derecognition

All financiat Habilities are recorded initially at fair value. The Partnership’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and borrowings.

Afer initial recognition, interest bearing borrowings are subsequently measured st arnortised cost using EIR, Gains and

losses are recognised in the profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance cost in the profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the

original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respeclive carrying amounts is
recognised in the profit or loss,

Offsetting of financial instriments

Financial assets and financial linbilities are offset and the net smount reported in the statement of financial position if,

and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is nn intention to settle
on a net basis, or lo realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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Derivative financial instruments and hedging

The Partnership uses hedping contracts for oil export sales to cover part of its risks associated with oil price
fluctuations, Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative

contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair
value is positive and as liahilities when the fair value is negative,

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair valoe of derivatives during the year that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are taken directly to profit or loss.

For more deteiled information in retation to derivative financial instruments, please refer to Nose 23.

Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions: fair value of financial instruments

The fair value measurement of the Parinership’s financial and non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible.

The fair value of derivative financial instruments is calculated using Black-Scholes valuation model based on Brent
Crude Futures traded on the Intercontinental Exchange. Significant management judgment is required to estimate
expected volatility used in the internal valuation model. The expecled volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome,

Changes in the key assumptions may have a malerial impact on the fair value gains and losses on derivatives recognised
in the future reporting periods.

The detail information on the derivative financial instruments and their fair value sensitivity to changes in volatilities
and oil price assumptions is provided in Note 28,

Cash and short-term deposits

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position comprise cash at banks and at hand and short term
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, but exclude any restricted cash which is not available for use

by the Partnership and therefore is not considered highly liquid - for exampte, cash set aside to cover decommissioning
obligations,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents, as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafis,

For more detailed information in relation to cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2016 and 2013, please see
Note 11.

Revenue recagnition

The Partmership sells crude oil, gas condensate and LPG under apreements priced by reference to Platt’s and/or Argus’

index quotations and adjusted for freight, insurance and quality differentials where applicable. The Partmership sells gas
under agreements at fixed prices,

Revenue from the sale of crude oil, pas condensate, gas and LPG is recognised when delivery has taken place and risks
and rewards of ownership have passed to the customer,

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
Partnership and the amount of revenue can be reliably measured.

5. EXTLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

During the yenr ended 31 December 2016 the Partmership had additions to exploration and evaluation assets of
US$ 7,354 thousand which mainly includes capitalised expenditures on geclogical studies and drilling costs {20153:
USE 12,537 thousand). Interest was not capitalised on exploration and evaluation assets,
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6. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 property plant and equipment comprised the following:

31 Dacember 31 December

In thousands of US Doliars 2016 2015
Qil and gas properties 1,760,592 1,567,334
Other propery, plant and equipment 48,839 38,487
1,809,431 1,605,821

Oil and gas propertics

The category “Oil and Gas properties” represents mainly weils, oil and gas treatment facilities, oil transportation and

other related assets, The movement of oil and gas properiies for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 was as
follows:

Warking Constructlon

in thousands of S Dollars assats In prograss Total
Balance at 31 Dacember 2014, net of accumulated

depreclation and depletion 1,032,888 369,483 1,402,371
Additions (1,131) 265,676 264,545
Transfers 101,481 (99,369) 2,112
Degpreciation and depletion charge (101,694} - {1G1,694)
Balance at 31 Decembear 2015, net of accumulated

depraciation and depletion 1,031,544 535,790 1,567,334
Additions 5,646 312,750 318,396
Transfers 219,673 (220,491) (818)
Depreciation and depletion charge {124,320) - {124,320)
Balance at 31 December 2016, nat of accumulated

depreciation and deplstion 1,132,543 628,049 1,760,592
As at 31 December 2014
Cost 1,459,456 369,483 1,828,939
Accumulated depreciation and depletion (426,568 - (426,568)
Balance, net of accumulated depreciation and

depletion 1,032,888 364,483 1,402,371
As at 31 December 2015
Cost 1,559,806 535,750 2,095,596
Accumuiated depreciation and depletion (528,262) - {528,262)
Balance, net of accumulated depreciation and

depletion 1,031,544 535,700 1,567,334
As at 31 December 2016
Cost 1,785,125 628,049 2,413,174
Accumulated depreciation and depletion {652,582) - (652,582)
Balance, net of accumulated depreciation and

depletion and depletion 1,132,543 628,049 1,760,592

The category “Construction in progress” is represented by employee remuneration, materials and fuel used, rig costs,
payments made to contractors, and asset retirement obligation fees directly associated with development of wells until
the drilling of the well is complete and results have been evaluated,

The depletion rate for oil and gas working assets was 11.95% and 10.2% in 2016 znd 20185, respectively,

The Partnership cngaged independent petroleum engineers to perform a reserves evaluation as at 31 December 2016,
Depletion has been calculated using the unit of production method based on these reserves estimates.

The change in the long-term inflation rate and discount rate used to determine the nbandonment and site restoration
provision {Nofe /4) in the year ended 31 December 2016 resulted in the increase of the oil and gas properties by
USS 2,399 thousand (31 December 2015 the decrease of US$ 5,622 thousand),
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The Parmership incurred borrowing costs including amortisation of arranpement fees. Capitalisation rate and capitalised
botrowing costs were as follows as at 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2015:

31 December 31 December
In thousands of US Dollars 2018 2015
Borrowing costs including amodisation of arrangement fea 76,433 77,630
Capitalisation rate 6.99% 7.04%
Capitalised borrowing costs 29,569 27,218

As at 31 December 2016 the Partnership’s property, plant and equipment of US§ 253,570 thousand were pledged as
sesurity for the loans duc to Nostrum Qil & Gas B.V. (Wote 13) (31 December 2015; 1SS 283,448),

Other property, plant and cquipment

Machinery Construe-
& tionn

In thousands of US Doliars Buildings equipment  Vehicles Others  progress Total
Balance at 31 December 2014,

net of accumulated

depreciation 23,787 5,850 1,626 8,272 306 39,821
Additions 1,102 1,698 268 5,698 231 8,097
Transfers 270 912 (6) (3,071) (217} {2,112)
Disposals - {24) {1,933) {285) - {2,242)
Disposals depreciation - 22 1,370 57 - 1,449
Depreciation (3,213) (2,535) (357} {1,321) - (7,426}
Balance at 31 December 2015,

net of accumulated

depreclation 21,026 5,923 968 9,380 320 38,487
Additions 14,594 Kyl:} 388 1,952 1M1 17,363
Transfers 1,758 216 104 (875) (386) 818
Disposals (62) (97} {49} (507) - (715}
Disposals depreclation 58 70 31 387 - 526
Depreclation {3,746} {2,176} {233} (1,485} - {7,640}
Balance at 31 December 2016,

nat of accumulated

depraciation 34,529 4,254 1,209 8,802 45 48,839
As at 31 Decemnber 2014
Cost 31,489 15,071 4,028 11,620 306 62,514
Accumulated depreciation (7,722) {8.221) {2.402) {3,348) - (22,693)
Balance, net of accumulated

depreclation 23,7687 5,850 1.626 8,272 306 38,821
As at 31 December 2015
Cost 32,861 17,657 2,357 13,952 320 67,157
Accumulated depreciation {10,935} §11,734) (1,389} {4,612} = (28.670)
Balance, net of accumulated

depreciation 21,926 5,923 968 9,350 320 38,487
As at 31 December 2016
Cost 49,459 18,093 2,804 14,530 45 84,631
Accumulated depreciation {14,630} {13,839} {1,535} {5,728} - {35,792}
Balance, net of accumutated

depreciation 34,529 4,284 1,209 8,802 45 48,839
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7. ADVANCES FOR NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Advances for non-current assets mainly comprised prepayments made to suppliers of services and equipment for

construction of a third unit for the Parmership’s gas treatiment facility.

31 Decambar 31 December
in thousends of UUS Dollars 2016 2015
Advances for plpes and construction materials 7,875 76,806
Advances for construction services 20,801 53.854
28,676 130,660
8. INVENTORIES
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015 inventories comprised the following:
31 December 31 December
In thousands of US Dollars 2016 2015
Spare parts and other inventories 21,789 20,369
(Gas condensate 4,514 5,684
Crude oil 1,488 2,528
LPG 125 372
Dry Gas _ 10 -
28,326 28,953
As at 3] December 2016 and 2015 inventories are carricd at cost.
9. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER CURRENT ASSETS
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015 prepayments and other current assets comprised the following:
31 December 31 December
In thousands of US Doflars 2018 2015
VAT receivable 10,321 18,053
Other taxes receivabla 2,312 2,71
Advances paid 6,085 4,040
Other 950 695
19,668 25,519

Advances paid consist primarily of prepayments made to service providers.

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015 trade reccivables were not interest bearing and were mainly denominated in

US Dollars, their average collection period is 30 days.

As at 31 December 2016 there were neither past due nor impaired trade receivables.

1i, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

31 December 31 December

in thousands of US Dollars 2016 2015
Current accounts in US Dollars 68,489 108,026
Currant accounts in Tenge 16,726 1,883

Current accounts in other currencies 267 -

Pelty cash 16 g
Bank deposits with malunily less than three months - 25,000
85,498 134,028

In addition to the cash and cash equivalents in the table above, the Parimership has resiricted cash accounts as
liquidation fund deposit in the amount of USS 521 thousand with Sberbank in Kazakhstan, US$ 3,404 thousand with
Kazkommertsbank and US$ 2,055 with Halyk bank (31 December 2015: US$ 5,375 thousand), which is keplt as
required by the subsoil use rights for abandonment and site restoration liabilities of the Partnership.
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12.  PARTNERSHIP CAPITAL

The charter capital of the Partnership was formed in Tenge and amounted to Tenge 600 thousand, equivalent to
USS 4 thousand as at 31 December 2013. As at 31 December 2013, the sharces of Nostrum Associated Investments LLP
and Claydon Tndustrial Ltd in the charter capital of the Partership constituted 55% and 45%, respectively, equivalent (o
USS 2.2 thousand and US$ 1.8 thousand, respectively.

On 23 May 2014, Nostrum Oil & Gas Cobperatief U.A. made a contribution to the charter capital of the Parinership in
the amount of 749,400 thousand Tenge, equivalent to USS 4,108 thousand.

On 21 April 2016 Zhatkmunai LLP bought back the 0.036% interest in the Partnership formerly held by Claydon Indusitial
Limited for US$ 220 thousand and the 0.044% interest formerly held by Nostrum Associated Investments LLP for
KZT 92,526 thousand {equivalent to US$ 274 thousand).

On 30 June 2016 the Partnership sold the repurchased interest of 0.08% to Nostrum Ol & Gas Codperatief UA. for

US§ 640 thousand. The surplus on the sale was recorded in other reserves. As the result of the transactions Nostrum Qil
& Gas Codperatief U.A. became the sole patticipant of the Partnership.

The interests of the pariners as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 were as follows:

31 Becember 2016 31 December 2015
In thousands In thousands
of Tenge % of Tenge %
Nostrum Qil & Gas Cobperatief U.A. 750,000 100 749,400 95.920
Nostrum Associated Investments LLP - - 330 0.044
Claydon Industrial Limited - - 270 0.036

Gain on initial recognition of loans received from Nostrum Oil & Gas B.V. in 2008 and 2009 at the below market
interest rates as well as loss on its subsequent substantial modification were recorded in other reserves,

Until 30 June 2016 the participants in the Partnership voted based on their participation percentage and were entitled to
participate in any distributions on the same basis. From 30 June 2016 decisions of the sole participant of the Parinership
replace meetings of the Partnership, and distributions will be made 100% to the sole participant.

On 26 May 20135 the Partnership made payments of profit distribution in the amount of US$ 45,000 thousand according
to the decision made at the Annual General Meeting of Participants of the Partmership on 24 April 2015.

13. BORROWINGS

Borrowings comprise the following as at 31 December 2016 and 2015:

31 December 31 December

In thousands of US Dollars 2018 2015
Notes issued in 2012 and maturing in 2019 550,518 545,309
Notes issued in 2014 and maturing In 2019 408,715 405,718
Nastrum Qil & Gas B.V. 61,000 61,000

Finance leasa liability {Note 27} 1,178 -
1,019,411 1,012,027
Less amounts due within 12 months {15,518} {15,361}
Amounts due after 12 months 1,003,893 996,666

2012 Notes

On 13 November 2012, Zhaikmunai International B.V. (the “2012 Initial {ssuer®) issued US$ 560,000 thousand notes
{the “2012 Notes™).

On 24 April 2013 Zheikmunai LLP (the “2012 Issuer™) replaced the 2012 Initial Issuer of the 2012 Notes, whereupon it
assumed all of the abligations of the 2012 Initial Issuer under the 2012 Notes.
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The 2012 Notes bear interest at the rate of 7.125% per year. Interest on the 2012 Notes is payable on 14 May and
13 November of each year, beginning on 14 May 2013.

On and after 13 November 2016, the 2012 Issuer shall be entitled at its option to redeem all or a portion of the 2012
Notes upon not less than 30 nor moere than 60 days' notice, at the redemption prices {expressed in perceniages of
principal amount of the 2012 Note), plus accrued and unpaid inferest on the 2012 Notes, if any, to the applicable
redemption date {subject to the right of holders of record on the relevant record date to receive interest due on the

relevant interest payment dalg), if redeemed during the twelvemonth period commencing on 13 November of the years
set forth below:

Pericd

Redemption Price
2016 103.56250%
27 101.78125%
2018 and thereafler 100.00000%

The 2012 Notes are jointly and severally guaranteed {(the *“2012 Guarantees”} on a senior basis by
Nostrum Oil & Gas ple and all of its subsidiaries other than the 2012 Issuer {the “2012 Guarantors™). The 2012 Notes
are the 2012 Issuer’s and the 2012 Guarantors’ senior obligations and rank equalty with all of the 2012 Tssuer’s and
the 2612 Guarantors® other senior indebtedness. The 2012 Notes and the 2012 Guarantees are unsecured. Claims of
secured creditors of the 2012 Teseer or the 2012 Guarantors will have priority with respect to their security over the
claims of creditors who do not have the benefit of such security, such as the holders of the 2012 Notes.

2014 Nates

On 14 February 2014, Nostrum Oil & Gas Finance B.V. (the “2014 Initial Issuer”) issued US$ 400,000 thousand notes
(the “2014 Notes™).

On 6 May 2014, Zhaikmunai LLP (the “2014 Issuer”) replaced Mostrum Qil & Gas Finance B.V. as issuer of
the 2014 Notes, whereupon it assumed all of the obligations of the 2014 Initial Issuer under the 2014 Notes.

The 2014 Notes bear interest at the rate of 6.375% per annum. Interest on the 2014 Notes is payable on 14 February and
14 August of each year, beginninp an 14 August 2014,

On and afler 14 February 2017, the 2014 Issuer shall be entitled at its option to redeem all or & portion of the 2014
Notes upon not less than 30 nor more than 60 days’ notice, at the redemption prices (expressed in percentages of
principal amount of the 2014 Note), plus accrued and unpaid inferest on the 2014 Notes, if any, to the applicoble
redemption date (subject to the right of holders of record on the relevant record date to receive interest duc on the

relevant interest payment date), if redeemed during the twelve month period commencing on 14 February of the years
set forth below;

Period Redemption Price
2017 103.1875%
2018 and therealter

100.0000%

The 2014 Notes are jointly and severally guaranteed (the *2014 Guarantees™) on a senior basis by Nostrum Oil & Gas
ple and all of its subsidiaries other than the 2014 Issuer (the “2014 Guarantors”). The 2014 Notes are the 2014 Issuer’s
and the 2014 Guarantors’ senior obligations and rank equally with all of the 2014 Issuer’s and the 2014 Guaraniors’
other senior indebtedness. The 2014 Notes and the 2014 Guarantees are unsecured. Claims of secured creditors of
the 2014 Issuer or the 2014 Guarentors will have priority with respect to their security over the claims of creditors who
do not have the benefit of such security, such as the holders of the 2014 Notes.

Costs directly attributable Lo the 2014 Notes arrangement amounted to USS$ 6,525 thousand.
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Covenants contained in the 2012 Notes and the 2014 Notes

The indentures governing the 2012 Notes and the 2014 Notes contain a number of covenants that, among other things,
restrict, subject to cerlain exceptions, the ability of the Issuer, the 2012 Guarantors and the 2014 Guarantors to:

() incur or guarantee additional indebtedness and issue certain preferred stock;
(ii}  create or incur certain liens;

{(iii) make certain payments, including dividends or other distributions;

(iv) prepay or redeem subordinated debt or equity;

{v]  make certain investments;

(vi) create encumbrances or restrictions on the payment of dividends or other distributions, loans or advances to and
on the transfer of assets to Nostrum Oil & Gas plc or any of its restricted subsidiaries;

(vii) sell, lease or transfer certain assets including shares of restricted subsidiaries;
{viii} engage in certain transactions with affiliates;

{ix} enter into unrelated businesses; and

(x) consolidate or merge with other entities.

Each of these covenants is subject to certain exceptions and qualifications.

In addition, the indentures impose certain requicements as to future subsidiary guarantors, and certain customary
information covenants and events of default.

Loans due te Nostrum Qil & Gas B.Y.

On 1 July 2008 the Partnership signed a loan agreement with Frans van der Schoot B.V. under which the latter provided
the Partnership with a US$ 90,276 thousand loan at an annual interest rate of two times LIBOR,

On 15 September 2009 Frans van der Schoot B.V. provided an additionai loan of USS 261,650 thousand at then

prevailing interest rate of 2.6% per year. On 22 December 2010, a portion of this loan amounting to
US5E 51,926 thousand was repaid.

On 19 October 2010, amendments to the loan agreement were made according {o which the interest rate was increased
from 2.6% to 10% and the maturity date was moved to 31 December 2015.

On 1 January 2013, amendments 1o the loan agreement were made according to which the interest rate was decreased
from 10% to 6.625% and ihe maturity date was moved to 31 December 2019,

The outstanding balance of the loan as at 31 December 2016 has an interest rate of 6.625% (31 BPecember 2015:
6.625%).

In accordance with the decisions of the Annnal General Meeting of the Farmership on 28 June 2013 the Parinership on
3 July 2013 made an early repayment of the part of the loan in the amount of USS 60,000 thousand to Nostrum
Oil & Gas B.V. On 23 December 2013 the Partnership made another early repayment of US$ 30,000 thousand to
Nostrum Gil & Gas BV, On 19 May 2014 the Parinership made an early repayment of US$ 104,000 thousand. On
13 May 2015 the Partnership made an early repavment of US$ 45,000 thousand.

14,  ABANDONMENT AND SITE RESTORATION PROVISION

The summary of changes in abandonment and site restoration provision during years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015 is as follows:

In thousands of US Dollars 2016 2015
Abandonment and site restoration provision as at 1 January 15,928 20,877
Unwinding of discount 331 428
Additlonal provision a7 247
Change in estimates 2,359 {5,622}
Abandonment and site restoration provision as at 31 Bacember 18,635 156,828

Management made its estimate based on the assumption that cash flow will take place at the expected end of the subsoil
use rights in 2033. There are uncertainties in estimation of future costs as Kazakh laws and regulations concerning site
restarntion evolve.
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The long-term inflation and discount rates used to determine the abandonment and site restoration provision al
31 December 2016 were 2.5% and 4.28%, respectively (31 December 2015: 2.49% and 5.54%).

The change in the long-term inflation rate and discount rate in the year ended 31 Dacember 2016 resulted in

the increase of the abandonment and site restoration provision by US$ 2,399 thousand (31 December 2015: the decrease
by US$ 5,622 thousand),

15. DUE TO GOVERNMENT OF KAZAKHSTAN

The amount due to Government of the Republic of Kazakhstan has been recorded to reflect the present value of
a liability in relation to the expenditures made by the Governiment in the time period prior to signing the Contract that
were related to exploration of the Contract territory and the construction of surface Gicilities in felds discovered therein
and that are reimbursable by the Partnership to the Government during the production period. The total amount of
liability due to Government as stipulated by the Contract is US$ 25,000 thousand,

Repayment of this linbility commenced in 2008 with the first payment of US$ 1,030 thousand in March 2008 and with

further payments by equal quarterly instalments of US$ 258 thousand until 26 May 203 1. The liability was discounted
at 13%.

The summary of the changes in the amounts due to Government of Kazakhstan during the years ended 31 December

2016and 2015 is as follows:

in thousands of US Dollars

2016 2015
Due to Government of Kazakhstan as at 1 January 6,808 6,937
Unwinding of discount gas 902
Paid during the year {773) (1,031}
6,920 6,808
Less: currant portion of due to Government of Kazakhstan {1,289} {1,631)
Due ta Government of Kazakhistan as at 31 Decamber 5,631 5777
16. TRADE PAYABLES
Trade payables comprise the following as at 31 December 2016 and 2015:
31 December 31 December
In thousands of US Daollars 2016 2015
Tenge denominated trade payables 22,516 22,437
US Dollar denominated trade payables 11,837 13,956
Eure denominaled irade payables 8,087 2,437
Russian Rouble denominaled trade payables 1,277 1,848
43,517 40,678
17. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other current liabilities comprise the following as at 31 December 2016 and 2015;
31 Dacember 31 December
In thousands of US Dollars 2016 2015
Training cbligations accrual 12,018 11,443
Accruals under the subscil use agreements 6,462 16,902
Taxes payable, other than corporate income tax 8,645 8,841
Due to employees 2,739 2,541
Other current liabililles 1,957 941
25821 40,768

Accruals under subsoil use agreements mainly include amounts estimated in respect of the contractual obligations for
exploration and production of hydrocarbons from Rostoshinskoye, Darjinskoye and Yuzhno-Gremyachinskoye fields,

The changes in the supplements to the subsoil use agreements and the adjusted work programs led to a reversal of the
previous year accrued liability by US$ 10,698 thousand during tie year ended 31 December 2016,
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18. REVENUE
In thousands of US Dollars 2016 2015
Revenus from oil and gas condensate sales 226,357 297,777
Revenue from gas and L PG sales 121,626 151,124
347,083 448,901

During the year ended 31 December 2016 the revenue from sales to three major customers amounted to USE 109,499
thousand, US$ 92,885 thousand and US$ 38,053 thousand respectively (2015: three major customers; US$ 141,359
thousand, US$ 104,978 thonsand and US$ 85,954 thousand, respectively).

The Partnership’s exports are mainly represented by deliveries to Finland, the Black Sea ports of Russia and the United
Arab Emirates.

19. COST OF SALES

In thousands of US Dolfarg 2016 2015
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation 130,043 107,680
Repair, maintenance and other services 21,897 26,557
Royalties 11,910 14,364
Payroll and related taxes 11,214 17,160
Other transportation services 6,843 3,049
Materials and supplles 4,649 7,838
Management feas 4,407 3,519
Well workover costs 3,928 5,182
Government profit share 2,582 1,880
Change in stock 2,047 (3,613)
Environmental levies 1,071 1,391
Other 1,894 2,799
201,785 187,816

20, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
In thousands of US Dollars 2018

2015
Payroll and related taxes 5,765 8,523
Management fees 3,511 3,785
Training 2,154 3,000
Depreclation and amortisation 1917 1,430
Insurance fees 775 1,401
Professional services 701 4,531
Sponsarship 574 1,314
Communication 484 766
Business travel 3s1t 414
Materials and supplies 353 635
Sogial program 5 302
Bank charges n 568
Lease payments 192 454
Other taxes 68 267
Other 507 592
18,008 27,982
21. SELLING AND TRANSPORTATION EXPENSES
in thousands of US Dollars 2016 2015
Loading and storage casts 33,220 41,229
Transportation costs 24,862 45,07
Markeling services 14,138 159
Payroll and related taxes 1,234 1,901
Other 2,229 4,610
75,583 92,870
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22, FINANCE COSTS
In thousands of US Dollars

2018 2015
Interest expense an borowings 46,864 50,412

Unwinding of discount on amounts due to Government of Kazakhslan 885 902

Unwinding of discount an abandonment and site restoration pravision 327 428

Unwinding of discount on social obligations liability 850 -
Financa charges under finance leases 201 -
49,127 51,740

23, OTHER EXPENSES

In thousends of US Dolfars 20186 2015
Export customs duty 5,534 14,669
Accruals under subsoil use agreements (Note 17} {9,808} 2,156
Compensation 5M 2,531
Other expense 5,248 14,139
1,545 30,495

Export customs duly is comprised of customs duties for export of crude oil and customs fees for services such as
processing of declarations, temporary warehousing ete. Based on their interpretation of CIS free-trade legislation
the Kazakhstan customs sutherities imposed customs duties on oil exporis ffom Kazakhstan to Ukraine starting fom

December 2012,

Accruals under subsoil use agreements mainly include net amounts estimaled in respect of the contractual obligations
for exploration and production of hydrocarbons from Rostoshinskoye, Darjinskoye and Yuzhno-Gremyachinskoye

fields.

24, INCOMETAX

‘The income tax expense consisted of the following:

In thousands of US Dollars 2016 2015

Deferred income tax {benefit/expensa {3,083) 142,469
Corporate income tax expense 19,984 22,836
Adjustment in respect of the current income tax for the prior pericds (1,328) {1,203}
Total incoma tax expense 15,583 164,102

The Partnership’s profits are assessed for income laxes only in the Republic of Kazakhstan, A reconciliation between
tox cxpense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the Kazakhstani tax tate applicable to the Chinarevskoye

subsoil use rights is as follows:

In thousands of US Dollars

2016 2015
{Loss)/Profit before income tax (51,054) 86,680
Tax rale applicabls to the subeil uss righls 30% 30%
Expected tax provision {15,316) 26,004
Effect of exchange rata on the tax base {2,355) 101,043
Adjustments in respect of current Income tax of previous years {1,327} {1,203)
Eifect of (loss)incoma taxed at different rate 7,258 (3,634}
Non-deductible Interest expense on borrowings 22,864 20,688
{Reversal)accrual of non-deductibla penalties {1,343} 3,656
Net forelgn exchange loss 2,828 12,019
Non-deductible social expenditures - 1,021
Non-deductibla cos! of technological loss 1 141
Non-deductible training expenditures 181 561
Other non-deduclible expenses 2,792 3,796
Incoma tax expenses reported in the financial statement 15,583 164,102
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The Partnership’s effective tax rate for the year ended 31 December 2016 is negative 30.5% (2015: 189.3%). The
Parmership’s cffective tax rate, excluding effect of movements in the US dollar / Tenge exchange rates and non-
deductible interest expense on borrowings, for the year ended 31 December 2056 is 15.2% (2015: 35%).

In addition the effective tax rate was impacted by the effect of losses and gains taxed at different rate mainly including
loss and gain on derivative financial instruments taxed at underlying tax rate of 20% which increased effective tax rate
by 14.2% for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: decreased by 4.2%).

Deferred tax balances are calculated by applying the Kazakhstani statutory tax rate applicable to the Chinarevskoye

subsoil use rights to the temporary differences between the tax amounts and the amounts reported in the financial
statements and ate comprised of the following:

in thousands of US Dollars 2016 2015

Deferred tax asset

Accounts payable and provisions 4,959 4,488

Deferred tax Hahility

Property, plant and equipment (348,311) (332,835)

Derivatlve financial instruments {1,332} {19,420}
{344,584) {347,767)

‘The movements in the deferred tax lighility were as foilows:

in thousands of US Dallars 2018 2015

Balance as at 1 January 347,767 206,208

Current perind (benefit)icharge o statement of comprehensive income {3,083) 142,469

Balance as at 31 Becember 344,684 347,767

25, DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 the movement in the fair value of derivative financial instruments
was presented as follows:

in thousands of US Dollars 2016 2015
Derivative financlal iInstruments at fair value as at 1 January 97,100 60,301
Proceeds from hedging contract {27,198} {92,256)
Purchase of hedging contract - 92,000
fLoss)qain on derivalive financial Instruments {63,244) 37,088
Perivative financlal instruments 6,658 97,100
Less current portion of derivative financial instruments 6,658 54,085
Long-term derivative financial instruments at fair value as at

31 December - 43,005

On 3 March 2014, the Partnership entered, at nil upfront cost, into a long-term hedging contract covering oil sales of

7,500 bbls/day, or & total of 5,482,50¢ bbls through 29 February 2016, which was sold for 1JS§ 92,256 thousand before
expiration on 14 December 2015,

On 14 December 2015, the Parinership entered, at cost of USS 92,000 thousand, into o long-term hedging contract
covering oil sales of 14,674 bbls/day for the first caleulation period and 15,000 bbls/day for the subsequent calculation
periods or a total of 10,950,000 bbis running through 14 December 2017, The counterparty to the hedging agreement is

VTB Capital Plc. Based on the hedging controct the Partnership bought a put, which protects it against any fall in
the price of oil below USS 49.16/bbl,

Gain and losses on the derivative financial instruments, which do not qualify for hedge accounting are taken directly to
profit or loss.

An analysis of fair values of financial instruments and further details as to how they are measured are provided in
Note 28.
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26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the purpose of these financial statements transactions with related parties mainly comprise transactions between
the Parinership and the participants and/or their subsidiaries or associated companies.

Accounts receivable from and advances paid to related parties as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 consisted of
the Bllowing:

31 December 31 December
in thousands of US Dollars 2016 2015
Trade receivables and advances pald
With slgnificant influence over Partnership:
- JSC OGCC KazStroyService 18,063 35,6832
Accounts payable to related partics as at 31 December 2016 and 2015 consisted of the following:

31 December 31 December

In thousands of US Dollars 2016 2015
Borrowings
Under common control:
- Nosirum Qif & Gas B.V. 61,000 61,000
Trade payables
With significant influence over the Partnership:
«.JSC OGLCC KazStroyService 5,291 4,144
- Nostrum Services N.V. 1,250 217
- Nostrum Services Central Asla LLP 201 73

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 the Parmership had the following transactions with related parties:
In thousands of US Dollars 2016 2015

Repayment of borrowings
Under ecmmon control:
- Nostrum Qil & Gas B.V,

- 45,000
Interest pald
Under common conirol:
- Nostrum Qll & Gas B.V. 4,490 5,708
Purchases
With significart influenca over the Partnership:
- JBC OGCC KazStroyService 40,746 29,606
Management fees and consulting services
Under common control:
- Nostrum Services Central Asia LLP 1,739 1,787
- Nostrum Services N.V. 9,487 8,009

On 28 July 2014 the Partnership entered into a contract with JSC “OGCC KazStroyService” {the “Contractor™) for
the construction of the third unit of the Partnership’s gas treatment facility for a consideration of US$ 150 million,

which was amended with effect from 10 August 2015 by a supplementary agreement increasing that consideration to
USS 160 million.

The technical support and service agreement with the Contractor that was originally valid until 31 December 2015 was
extended untit 30 September 2016,

The Contractor is an affiliate of Mayfair Investments B.V., which as at 31 December 2016 owned approximately
23.7% of the ordinary shares of Nostrum Oil & Gas PLC,

Management fees are payable in accordance with the Technical Assistance Agreements signed hetween the Partnership
and Nostrum Services Central Asia LLP and Nostrum Services N.V. related to the rendering of geological, geophysical,
drilling, technical and other consultancy services. Remuneration (represented by short-term employee benefits) of key
management persennel amounted to USS 305 thousand for the year ended 31 December 2016 (20135: USS 404 thousand),
Other key monagement personnel were employed and paid by Nostrum Services Central Asia LLP and Nostrum
Services N.V. and (ieir remuneration forms part of management fees and consulting services above,
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27, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS
Taxstion

Kazakhstan’s tax legislation and regulations are subject to ongoing changes and varying interpretations, Instances of
inconsistent opinions between loeal, regional and national tax authorities are not unusual, including opinions with
respect lo IFRS treatment of revenues, expenses and ather items in the financial statements. The current regime of
penalties and interest related to reported and discovered violations of Kazakhstan's tax laws are severe. Penaltics are
generally 50% of the taxes additionally assessed and interest is assessed at the refinancing rate established by
the National Bank of Kazakhstan multiplied by 2.5, As a result, penaliies and interest can amount to multiples of any
asscssed taxes. Fiscal periods remain open to review by tax authorities for five calendar years preceding the year of
review, Under certain circumstances reviews may cover longer periods. Because of the uncertainties associated with
Kazakhstan’s tax system, the ultimate amount of taxes, penalties and interest, if any, may be in excess of the smount
expensed to date and accrued st 31 December 2016. As at 31 December 2016 management believes that

its interpretation of the relevant legislation is appropriate and that it is probable that the Parinership’s tax position will
be sustained.

Abandenment ard site restoration (decommissioning)

As Kazakh laws and regulations conceming site restoration and clean-up evolve, the Parinership may incur future costs,

the amount of which is currently indetermingble, Such costs, when known, will be provided for as new information,
legislation and estimates evolve,

Environmental obligations

The Partnership may also be subject to loss contingencies relating to regional environmental claims that may arise fom
the past operations of the related felds in which it operates, Kazakhstan's environmental legislation and regulations are
subject to ongoing changes and varying interpretations. As Kazakh laws and regulations evolve concerning
environmental assessments and site restoration, the Partnership may incur fisture costs, the amount of which is currently
indeterminable due to such factors as the ultimate determination of responsible parties associated with these costs and
the Govemnment’s assessment of respective parties” ability to pay for the costs related to envirenmental reclamation.

However, depending on any unfavourable court decisions with respect (0 any claims or penaltics assessed by the

Kazakh regulatory agencies, it is possible that the Parinership’s fiture resulls of operations or cash Bow could be
materially & ffected in a particular period.

Capital comtmitments

As at 31 December 2016 the Partership had contractual capital commitments in the amount of US$ 96,990 thousand

{31 December 2015: US3 123,529 thousend) mainly in respect to the Parmership’s oil feld exploration and
development activities.

Operating {ease

In 2010 the Partnership entered into several agreements on lease of 650 railway tank wagons for transportation of
hydrocarbon products for a period of up to seven years for KZT 6,989 (equivalent of US$ 47) per day per one wagon.

‘The lease agreements may be early terminated either upon mutual agreement of the parties, or unilaterally by one of the
parties if the other party does not fulfil its obligations under the contract.

The total of future minimum lease payments under non-cancelfable operating lease was represented as follows:

31 Decembar 31 December
In thousands of US Dollars 2016 2015
No later than cna year 9,589 12,471
Later than one year and no later than five years 28,795 4,623

Lease expenses of railway tank wagons during the year ended 31 December 2016 amounted to USS 12,285 thousand
{2015: USS 15,690 thousand).
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Finaace lease

On 12 April 2016 the Parimership entered into a finance lease agreament for the main administrative office in Uralsk for
a period of 20 years for US$ 66 thousand per month. As at 31 December 2016 the finance lease prepayment amounted

to USS 12,151 thousand, Future minimum lease payments under Bnance leases, together with the present value of
the net minimum lease payments are as follows:

31 December 2016 31 December 2015

Minfmum Present valua Minimum  Present valus
In thousands of US Doallars payments  of payments payments of payments
No later than one year 525 4396 - -
Later than one year and no later thar five years 561 349 - -
Later than five vears 2,039 333 - =
Total minimum lease payments 3,125 1,178 - -
Less amounts representing finance charges 1,947 - - ~
Present valua of minimum lease payments 1,178 1,178 - -

Social and education commitmengs
As required by the Coniract {as amended by, inter alia, Supplement No. 9}, the Partnership is obliged to:
(i}  Spend US$ 300 thousand per annum to finance social infrastructure;

{(iiy  Make an accrual of one percent per annum of the actual investments for the Chinarevskoye field for the purposes
of educating Kazakh citizens; and

(iify Adhere 1o a spending schedule on education which lasts until (and including) 2020,

The contracts for exploration and production of hydrocarbons fom Rostoshinskoye, Darjinskoye and Yuzhno
Gtemyachinskoye fields require fulfilment of several social and other obligations.

The outstanding obligations under the coniract for exploration and production of hydrocarbons from Rostoshinskoye
field (as amended on 26 December 2016) require the subsurface user to:

{iy  Spend USS 1,000 thousand for funding of development of Astana city;

(ii}  Invest at least USS 20,694 thousand for exploration of the field during the exploration period;

{iii) Reimburse historical costs of USS 383 thousand to the Government upon commencement of production stage;
{iv)  Fund liquidation expenses equal to USS 147 thousand; and

{+}  Spend USS 1,250 thousand to finance social infrastructure.

The ocutstanding obligations under Lhe contract for exploration and production of hydrocarbons fom Darjinskoye field
(after its amendment on 26 December 2016) require the subsurface user to:

(i)  Invest at least US3 21,770 thousand for exploration of the field during the exploration period;
(ii)  Fund liquidation expenses equal to USS 209 thousand,

The outstanding obligations under the contract for exploration and production of hydrocarbons from Yuzhno-
Gremyachinskoye field (after its amendment on 26 December 2016) require the subsurface user to:

(i)  Invest at least USS 27,910 thousand for exploration of the field during the exploration period;
(i) Fund liquidation expenses equal to USS 271 thousand.

Dosnestic oil snles

In accordance with Supplement No. 7 fo the Contract, the Partnership is required to deliver at least 15% of produced oil
to the domestic market on o monthly basis for which prices are materially lower (han export prices,
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28.  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Parmership’s principal financial liabilities comprise borrowings, payables to Government of Kazakhstan, trade
payables and other current liabilities. The main purpose of these financial labilities is to finance the development of
the Chinarevskoye oil and gas condensate field and its operations as well as exploration of the three new oil and gas
fields — Rostoshinskoye, Darjinskoye and Yuzhno-Gremyachinskoye. The Partnerhip’s financial assets consist of trade
and other receivables, non-current investments, current investments and cash and cash equivaleats.

The main risks arising from the Partnership’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk, liquidity

risk, credit risk and commodity price risk. The Partnership’s management reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks, which are summarized below.

Commadity price risk

The Partnership is exposed to the effect of fluctuations in price of crude oil, which is quoted in US Dollars on

the international markets. The Partnership prepares annual budgets and periodic forecasts including sensitivity annlyses
in respect of various levels of crude oil prices in the future.

Interest rate risk

The Partnership is not exposed to interest rate risk in 2016 and 20135 as the Partmership had no financial instruments
with floating-rate as at years ended 31 December 2016 and 2013.

Foreign currency risk

The Partnership’s statement of financial position can be affected by movements in the US Dollar/Tenge exchange rates.
p 8

The Partnership mitigates the effect of its structural currency exposure by borrowing in US Dollars and denominating
sales in US Dollars,

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the US Dollars exchange rate, with

all other variables held constant, of the Partmership's profit before tax. The impact on equity is the same as the impact
on profit before tax.

Change In Tenge Effact
to US Dellar on prafit
exchange rate before tax
2016
US Dollar thousand 20.00% 570
US Dollar thousand (20.00%}) (570)
2015
US Dollar thousand 60.00% 16,350
LIS Dollar thousand 20.00% (6,117)
The Partnership’s foreign currency denominated monelary assets and liabilities were as follows:
Russlan
As at 31 Becember 2016 Tenge Roubles Euro Other Total
Cash and cash equivalents 16,742 208 59 - 17,010
Trade receivables 11,540 - 1,668 - 13,208
Trade payables {22,516) {1,278} (8,087) - {31,881}
Other current liabilities {8,614} - - - {8,614)
{2,548} {1,069) {6,360) - {10,277}
Russian
As at 31 December 2015 Tenge Roubles Euro Other Tolal
Cash and cash equivalents 1,802 - - - 1,402
Trade receivables 1,455 - - - 1,455
Trade payables (22,4386) {1,8489) {2,437} - {26,722}
Other current liabililies {11,505} = - - (11,505}
{30,584} (1,849) {2,437) - (34,870)
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Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Parinership will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated

with its financial liabilities, Linuidity risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its fuir
value.

The Parinership monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a liquidity planning tool. The tool allows selecting severe
stress test scenarios. To ensure an adequate level of liquidity a minimum cash balance has been defined a5 2 cushion of
liquid assets. The Partnership’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through
the use of notes, loans, hedges, export financing and financial leases.

The Parinership’s policy is that, while it has an investment program on-going: a) not more than 25% of borrowings
should mature in the next twelve-month period and b) a minimum balance of US$ 50 million is retained on the balance
sheet post repayment or refinancing of any debt due in the next twelve-tnonth period,

The Parmership’s total cutstanding debt consists of USS 41 million of loan due to Nostrum Qit & Gas B.V. and
two notes: 1JS$ 560 million issued in 2012 and maturing in 2019 and US$ 400 mii¥ion issued in 2014 and maturing in
2019. The Partnership assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it 1o be low.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Partnership’s financial liabilities at 31 December 2016 and 2015
based on contractual undiscounted payments:

Less than More than
As at 31 Bacember 2016 On demand 3 months 3-12months 1-5 years 5 years Total
Borrowings - 17,509 52,256 1,132,627 2,038 1,204,431
Trade payables 35,158 - 8,361 - - 43,517
Other current liabillfies 14,757 - - - - 14,757
Due to Government of
Kazakhslan - 258 773 4,124 9,536 14,691
49,913 17,767 61,390 1,136,751 11,575 4,277,398
Less lhan More than
As at 31 December 2015 On demand dmonths  3-12 months 1-5 years 5 years Total
Borrowings - 18,106 70,667 217,268 1,133,665 1,438,706
Trade payables 47,110 - 1,524 - - 48,634
Other current liabilities 11,843 - - - - 11,843
Due to Government of
Kazakhstan - 258 773 4,124 11,340 16,495
58,853 18,364 72,964 221,392 1,145,005 1.516.678
Credit risk

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Partnership to credit risk, consist primarily of derivative financial
instrumenis, accounts receivable and cash in banks. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financinl asset. The Partnership considers that its maximum exposure is reflected by the amount of trade
accounis receivable, cash and cash equivalents and derivative financial instruments.

The Partnership places its Tenge denominated cash with SB Sberbank JSC, which has a credit rating of Ba3 (negative)
from Moody's rating agency and ING with a credit rating of Al (stable) from Moody's rating agency at 31 December
2015. The Partmership does not guarantee obligations of other partics,

The Partnership sells its products and makes advance payments only (0 recognized, creditworthy third parties. In
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Partnership’s exposure to bad
debts and recoverability of prepayments made is not significant and thus risk of credit default is low.

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Parinership’s established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management, Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on an extensive
credit rating scorecard. Quistonding customer receivables are regularly menitored,

An impnirment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets. The Partmership does
not hold collateral as security. The Partnership evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as
low, as its customers are located in several jurisdictions and industries and operate in largely independent markets,
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Fair values of financial instruments

Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Parinerships financial instruments,
other than those with carrying amounts reasonably approximating their fair values:

Carrying amount Falr value

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 Dacember
in thousands of 1S Dollsrs 2018 2015 2016 2015
Financial assets measured at fair value
Derivative financial instruments 6,658 97,100 6,653 97,100
Finandial liabllitles measured at amortised cost
Interest bearing borrowings {1,018,233) {1,012,027) {1,017,418) {871,161)
Finance leasa liability {1,178} - {1,799} ~-
Total {1,012,753) (914,927} {1,012,559) (774,061)

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, current investments, trade receivables, trade payables and
other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturitics of these instruments,

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities represents the amount at which the instruments could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. Fair value of the quoted notes
is based on price quotations at the reparting date and respectively categorised as Level 1 within the fair value hierarchy,
The fair value of derivative financial instruments is calegorised as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy and is
calculated using Black-Scholes valuation model based on Brent Crude Futures traded on the Intercontinental Exchange,
with the relative expiration dates ranging from the current reporting date until December 2017.

The following table shows ranges of the inputs depending on maturity, which are used in the model for calculation of
the fhir value of the derivative financial instruments as at 31 December 2016 and 2015:

31 Decaember 31 December

2016 2015

Future price at the reporting date {US$) 56.82-58.84 37.19-48,75
Expected volalility {%) 27.33 30.31
Risk-free interest rale (%) 0.84 0.32-0.69
Maturily (maonths) 1-11 1-23

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also
not necessarily be the actual outcome,

The following table reflects the results of the changes in volatilities and oil price assumptions on the fair value of the
derivative finencial instrument:

Increase in Decrease in
the assumption {he assumption
(Increase)decrease in gain on dervative financial instruments dua to change
In oil price assumption (+/~USS 2/bbl) {1,523) 1.976
Increasef{decrease) in gain on derivative financial instruments dus to change
in volatility rate assumption {+/-2%) 1,203 {1,143}

Movement in the derivative financial instruments is disclosed in Note 23.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 there were no transfers between the levels of fair value hierarchy
of the Partmership’s financial instruments,

Capital management

For the purpose of the Partmership’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, additional paid-in capital and

all other equity reserves attributable (o the equity holders of the parent, The primary objective of the Partnership’s
capital management Is to maximise the sharcholder value,

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Partnership’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure
that it meets financinl covenants attached to the notes that define capital structure requirements, Breaches in meeting
the financial covenants would permit the lenders to immedintely call borrowings, There have been no breaches in
the financial covenants of the notes in the current period nor the prior period.
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The Partnership manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and
the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capitel structure, the Partership may adjust
the distribution payment to participants, retum capital to participanis or increase partnership capital. The Partnership
moniltors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Partnership’s policy
is to keep the gearing ratio between 20% and 40%. The Partnership includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and
botrowings, less cash, short-term deposits and long-term deposits,

In thousands of US Dollars 2016 2015
Bommowings 1,019,411 1,050,165
Less: cash and cash equlvalents, restricted cash and current and

non-current investmenls {81,478) {140,303)
Net debt 927,933 808,862
Equity 582 824 659,315
Total caplial 592 824 659,315
Capital and net debt 1,520,757 1,569,177
Gearing rafio 61% 5B%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 December 2016 and 2015,

33



